ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, is available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Room 112, Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202–205–2000. Hearing-impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202–205–1810.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Smith R. Brittingham IV, Esq., Office of Unfair Import Investigation, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone 202–205–2576.

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. § 210.10 (1996).

Scope of Investigation

Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on December 11, 1996, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain digital satellite system (DSS) receivers or components thereof by reason of infringement of claims 3, 6, 7, 12, 15, 35, or 44 of U.S. Letters Patent 5,335,277, and whether there exists an industry in the United States as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

(2) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:

(a) The complaint is—Personalized Media Communications, L.L.C., 110 East 42nd Street, Suite 1704, New York, New York 10017.

(b) The respondents are the following companies alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served:

Thomson Consumer Electronics, Inc., 10330 North Meridian Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46206.

Hughes Network Systems, 11717 Exploration Lane, Germantown, Maryland 20876.

- Hitachi Home Electronics (America), Inc., 3890 Steve Reynolds Blvd., Norcross, Georgia 30093.
- Toshiba America Consumer Products, Inc., 82 Totowa Road, Wayne, New Jersey 07470.
- Matsushita Electric Corporation of America, One Panasonic Way, Secaucus, New Jersey 07094.
- DIRECTV, Inc., 2230 E. Imperial Hwy., El Segundo, California 90245.
- United States Satellite Broadcasting Co., 3415 University Ave., St. Paul, Minnesota 55114.

(c) Smith R. Brittingham IV, Esq., Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Room 401–M, Washington, D.C. 20436, who shall be the Commission investigate attorney, party to this investigation; and

(3) For the investigation so instituted, the Honorable Paul J. Luckern is designated as the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. §210.13. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§201.16(d) and 210.13(a) of the Commission's Rules. such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the Commission of the compliant and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the compliant will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the compliant and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondents, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter both an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of a limited exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against such respondent.

By order of the Commission. Issued: December 11, 1996. Donna R. Koehnke, *Secretary.* [FR Doc. 96–32106 Filed 12–17–96; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training Administration

Investigations Regarding Certifications of Eligibility To Apply for Worker Adjustment Assistance

Petitions have been filed with the Secretary of Labor under Section 221(a) of the Trade Act of 1974 ("the Act") and are identified in the Appendix to this notice. Upon receipt of these petitions, the Program Manager of the Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance, Employment and Training Administration, has instituted investigations pursuant to Section 221(a) of the Act.

The purpose of each of the investigations is to determine whether the workers are eligible to apply for adjustment assistance under Title II, Chapter 2, of the Act. The investigations will further relate, as appropriate, to the determination of the date on which total or partial separations began or threatened to begin and the subdivision of the firm involved.

The petitioners or any other persons showing a substantial interest in the subject matter of the investigations may request a public hearing, provided such request is filed in writing with the Program Manager, Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance, at the address show below, not later than December 27, 1996.

Interested persons are invited to submit written comments regarding the subject matter of the investigations to the Program Manager, Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance, at the address shown below, not later than December 27, 1996.

The petitioners filed in this case are available for inspection at the Office of the Program Manager, Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance, Employment and Training Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210.

Signed at Washington, D.C. this 25th day of November, 1996.

Russell T. Kile,

Program Manager, Policy & Reemployment Services, Office of Trade Adustment Assistance.

66696

Appendix [Petitions instituted on 11/25/96]

TA–W	Subject firm (petitioners)	Location	Date of petition	Product(s)
32,935	Borg Warner Automotive (UAW)	Munice, IN	11/11/96	Rear Wheel Drive Manual Trans- missions.
32,936	Norman Manufacturing Co. (USWA)	Philadelphia, PA	10/15/96	Electrical Lamps.
32,937	Cogema Resources (USWA)	Mills, WY	10/23/96	Uranium Oxide.
32,938	Ciba-Toms River Site (OCAW)	Toms River, NJ	11/07/96	Dyes for Textile Products Division.
32,939	Eaton Controls Automotive (UPIU)	Wauwatosa, WI	11/06/96	Automotive Controls.
32,940	Genesco, Inc-Laredo (Co.)	Hohenwald, TN	11/07/96	Western Footwear.
32,941	Kimble Glass (AFGW)	Vineland, NJ	10/08/96	Glass Coffee Pots.
32,942	Peach State Limited (Wkrs)	Chester, GA	11/05/96	Shirts.
32,943	Procter and Gamble (Wkrs)	Hatboro, PA	11/08/96	Over The Counter Pharmaceuticals.
32,944	Plaid Clothing Group (UNITE)	Chambersburg, PA	11/08/96	Men's Suits, Slacks, Sportcoats.
32,945	A.O. Smith Electrical (IBEW)	Tipp City, OH	11/06/96	In-Bells, Shafts & Steel Lamina.
32,946	Flintab Machine, Inc (Co.)	North Falmouth, MA	11/06/96	Precision Machine Parts.
32,947	Sunbeam Household Product (Co.)	Coushatta, LA	10/04/96	Irons and Toasters.
32,948	East Tenn. Undergarments (UNITE)	Elizabethton, TN	11/07/96	Ladies' Undergarments.
32,949	Barclay Home Products (Co.)	Cherokee, NC	11/07/96	Quilts.
32,950	Barclay Home Products (Co.)	Robbinsville, NC	11/07/96	Quilts.
32,951	Amp, Inc. (Wkrs)	Erie, PA	11/08/96	Plastic Components for Connectors.
32,952	Permacel (Wkrs)	Lakewood, NJ	10/25/96	CD Roms.
32,953	Petrie Retail, Inc (Wkrs)	Secaucus, NJ	11/06/96	Distribution of Ladies & Girls Cloth-
				ing.
32,954	Louisiana Pacific (Wkrs)	Ketchikan, AK	11/05/96	Desolving Pulp High Grade Sulphite.
32,955	Philadelphia Sweater Mill (Co.)	Philadelphia, PA	11/13/96	Sweaters.
32,956	Cyress Chemical (Co.)	El Paso, TX	11/06/96	Soaps, Softners for Jeans.
32,957	Apex Sportswear (Co.)	New York, NY	11/18/96	Ladies' Sportswear.
32,958	Jefferson City Mine (USWA)	Jefferson City, TN	11/15/96	Zinc Concentrate.
32,959	Bowdon Manufacturing Co (Wkrs)	Bowdon, GA	11/13/96	Men's & Ladies' Tailored Suits.
32,960	Cabot Perform Materials (ICWUC)	Boyertown, PA	11/12/96	Tantalum and Other Metals.
32,961	Killark Electric Mfg Co (IBEW)	St. Louis, MO	11/14/96	Electrical Components.
32,962	Rayonier, Inc (AWPPW)	Port Angeles, WA	11/13/96	Chemical Wood Pulp.
32,963	Sunbeam Outdoor Products (Co.)	Portland, TN	11/13/96	Outdoor Furniture.
32,964	H.L. Miller & Son (Co.)	Schuykill Have, PA	11/07/96	Knit, Bleach, & Dye Sweatshirt Ma- terial.
32,965	Hawk Golf Bag Company (Co.)	Clarion, IA	11/13/96	Golf Bags.
32,966	D.S. Knitting (Wkrs)	White Mills, PA	11/13/96	Children's Sweaters.
32,967	Hashbro, Inc (Wkrs)	Arcade, NY	10/19/96	Baby and Toddler Bibs & Wash Cloths.
32,968	Velco Electronics (Wkrs)	Fishers, NY	10/30/96	Radio & Microprocessor Crystals.
32,969	NEC Technologies, Inc (Wkrs)	Northborough, MA	11/11/96	Personal Computers.
32,970	B.F. Goodrich (IBEW)	Norwich, NY	11/03/96	Aerospace Ignition Products.
32,971	Boyt Company (The) (Wkrs)	Iowa Falls, IA	11/12/96	Luggage.
	Boyt Company (The) (Wkrs)	Bedford, IA	11/12/96	Luggage.

[FR Doc. 96–32098 Filed 12–17–96; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4510–30–M

[TA-W-32,895]

Control Techniques Drives, Incorporated, Grand Island, NY; Notice of Termination of Investigation

Pursuant to Section 221 of the Trade Act of 1974, an investigation was initiated on November 12, 1996 in response to a worker petition which was filed on October 21, 1996 on behalf of workers at Control Techniques Drives, Inc., Grand Island, New York.

A negative determination applicable to the petitioning group of workers was issued on November 25, 1996 (TA–W– 32,885). No new information is evident which would result in a reversal of the Department's previous determination. Consequently, further investigation in this case would serve no purpose, and the investigation has been terminated.

Signed in Washington, D.C. this 3rd day of December, 1996.

Russell T. Kile,

Program Manager, Policy and Reemployment Services, Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance.

[FR Doc. 96–32102 Filed 12–17–96; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4510–30–M

[TA–W–32,561 Midway, GA; TA–W–32, 561D Haw River, SC]

Kingstree Knits, a Division of Texfi Industries, Inc.; Amended Certification Regarding Eligibility To Apply for Worker Adjustment Assistance

In accordance with Section 223 of the Trade Act of 1974 (19 U.S.C. 2273) the

Department of Labor issued a Certification of Eligibility to Apply for Worker Adjustment Assistance on September 17, 1996, applicable to all workers of Kingstree Knits, A Division of Texfi Industries, Incorporated located in Midway, Georgia. The notice was published in the Federal Register on October 1, 1996 (61 FR 51303). The worker certification was amended November 8, 1996 to include other South Carolina locations. That notice will soon be published in the Federal Register.

At the request of petitioners, the Department reviewed the certification for workers of the subject firm. Company officials report that worker separations will occur at the subject firm's production facility in Haw River, South Carolina. The workers are engaged in employment related to the